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BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and

2

numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before

3

the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting

4

Committee at the OFFICES OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL,

5

15 South 15th Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at

6

1:42 p.m. on the 15th of January, 2020.

7
8
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THOMAS K. CHENAL, Chairman

9
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10
For the Applicant:
11
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13
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Ms. Meghan H. Grabel
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Mr. Ali Amirali, Senior Vice President
Starwood Energy Group
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Mr. Ian Calkins, Vice President of Public Affairs
Copper State Consulting Group
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Appeals
Ms. Margaret (Toby) Little, Engineer (Telephonic)
Arizona Corporation Commission Staff

22
23

Ms. Marie Elena Cobb
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CHMN. CHENAL:

01/15/2020

Good afternoon, everyone.

2

This is the time set for the prehearing conference for

3

the Ten West Link project.

4

Ms. Grabel, may we have appearances, please.

5

MS. GRABEL:

6

CHMN. CHENAL:

7
8
9
10
11
12

Yes, Chairman.
Starting with you, I should

say.
MS. GRABEL:

My name is Meghan Grabel of the

law firm Osborn Maledon for the applicant, DCR
Transmission, for the Ten West Link project.
With me are my associates, Elias Ancharski
and Kim Ruht.

13

CHMN. CHENAL:

14

MR. AMIRALI:

15

(Telephone rings.)

16

(Margaret (Toby) Little was telephonically

17
18

Thank you.
Representing the applicant --

connected to the prehearing conference.)
MS. COBB:

Hello, Toby.

This is Marie with

19

the Line Siting Committee.

20

with the applicant, Meghan Grabel, Ali --

21

MS. GRABEL:

22

MS. COBB:

You are on speakerphone

Ali Amirali.
-- Amirali, Eli Ancharski, Kim

23

Ruht, Maureen Scott --

24

MR. CALKINS:

25

MS. COBB:

Ian Calkins, on behalf of --

-- Ian Calkins, and the Chairman
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We were just doing appearances.

2

MS. LITTLE:

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

4

Thank you.
And who is on the phone again,

please?

5

MS. LITTLE:

6

CHMN. CHENAL:

7

MS. SCOTT:

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

9

01/15/2020

Toby Little, engineer.
For the ACC?

ACC Staff.
Okay.

Little, is that the

last name?

10

MS. SCOTT:

Yes.

11

CHMN. CHENAL:

Ms. Little, would you turn up

12

your volume a little or maybe we can turn up our volume

13

at our end.

14

MS. COBB:

15

MS. LITTLE:

16

Mine is max too, but I'll take

you off speaker.

17
18

I have it at max now.

CHMN. CHENAL:

Yeah, that's probably -- when

you want to speak, why don't you go off speaker.

19

All right, Ms. Scott.

20

MS. SCOTT:

21
22
23
24
25

Maureen Scott on behalf of the

ACC Staff.
CHMN. CHENAL:

And Marie Cobb, my assistant,

myself, and the court reporter.

Okay, good.

So I think we will go through kind of a
standard checklist I have of topics covering logistics,
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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1

the hearing itself, making sure that everyone has

2

complied with the procedural order; if not, that we can

3

make sure that we take care of those issues.

4

So first of all, I'd like to just confirm

5

lodging arrangements for Committee Members.

6

be a few that will need lodging arrangements in

7

Phoenix; I just want to make sure that that's been

8

done.

9

MS. GRABEL:

10
11

There will

That has been taken care of.

CHMN. CHENAL:

And I know we have

arrangements in Quartzsite.

12

MS. GRABEL:

Correct.

13

CHMN. CHENAL:

And I guess then back in

14

Phoenix for those that need it.

15

MS. GRABEL:

16

CHMN. CHENAL:

Yes.
And I always ask this, just

17

that the applicant's been in contact with the

18

Corporation Commission to make sure that, you know,

19

that the costs associated with this hearing, to the

20

extent they're more than the statutory amount, which

21

they always are, will be taken care of by the

22

applicant.

23

MS. GRABEL:

Yes.

I notified Nancy Lawrence,

24

with the ACC Staff, on December 20th and let her know

25

we will take care of all expenses.
COASH & COASH, INC.
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1

CHMN. CHENAL:

2

All right.

01/15/2020

Perfect.

We've had two actual notices of

3

intervention, it's basically as of right.

We have the

4

Corporation Commission, Ms. Scott, there was a notice

5

of intervention filed on behalf of the Corporation

6

Commission.

7

intervention by La Paz County through counsel, and

8

those are as a matter of right.

9

County Attorney, at least that's who it was filed on

And then we also have a notice of

Mr. Rogers, La Paz

10

behalf of.

11

Paz County Attorney's Office.

12

Corporation Commission will be intervenors in this

13

case.

14

Actually, by Ryan Dooley, Chief Deputy, La
So La Paz County and the

And I'm unaware of any other applications to

15

intervene or applications to make a limited appearance,

16

and I'd just -- if anyone here is aware of it, I would

17

just like to know about it, but I'm unaware of

18

anything.

19
20

MS. GRABEL:

The applicant is aware of none

either.

21

MS. SCOTT:

22

MS. GRABEL:

We are not either.
Just for the record, I did speak

23

with Mr. Dooley, and he indicated that he did not

24

intend to appear during the hearing or ask

25

cross-examination questions.
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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1

CHMN. CHENAL:

2

MS. GRABEL:

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

4

01/15/2020

During the hearing?

During the hearing, correct.
He will appear at the hearing

or will not?

5

MS. GRABEL:

Not likely.

It's possible that

6

members of his board will make public comment the first

7

night in Quartzsite, but he will not -- they intervened

8

just kind of as a placeholder for the actual Open

9

Meeting on this matter before the Arizona Corporation

10

Commission.

11

CHMN. CHENAL:

All right.

So I haven't had

12

that situation before.

13

intervenes and it's granted -- well, it's not

14

granted -- it's as a matter of right and they don't

15

show up, I guess there's nothing other than it's not

16

normal.

17

But I guess if someone

But other than that, I guess it's okay.
All right.

Let's talk about notice to

18

affected jurisdictions.

19

Arizona -- well, you've sent -- you, the applicant,

20

you, Ms. Grabel, have sent notice to the affected

21

jurisdictions in accordance with the procedural order

22

to Arizona Game and Fish, Arizona State Land

23

Department, La Paz County, Maricopa County, and Town of

24

Quartzsite?

25

MS. GRABEL:

It's my understanding that the

That's correct, yes.

COASH & COASH, INC.
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Those are probably -- that

2

group is probably larger than the actual affected

3

jurisdictions, but --

4

MS. GRABEL:

5

exactly.

6
7

CHMN. CHENAL:

-- more is better than less.

No problem with that.

8
9

More is better than less,

Let's talk about the posting and publishing.
The Notice of Hearing has obviously been filed.

And

10

can you just kind of briefly summarize the posting and

11

publishing that's been done to date?

12

MS. GRABEL:

Certainly.

We calculated the

13

publication deadline as December 23rd, 2019, which is

14

10 business days after the December 9th application

15

filing date.

16

December 19th and 20th, which was prior to the

17

December 23rd deadline, that was in the Arizona

18

Republic.

19

the Parker Pioneer; that occurred on the 25th and the

20

1st of January, so that's after the deadline.

21

because we had already complied with the notice

22

requirements, that was more just to be outreach

23

purposes for the local newspaper.

24
25

The publication in the newspaper ran on

We also published the Notice of Hearing in

But

We also posted the Notice of Hearing to the
project website -- posted the application on the
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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1

project website on December 9th and December 16th in

2

two different parts, and we posted the prefiling

3

conference transcript those same dates.

4

highway signage posts went up on December 21st, 2019 in

5

the sites we agreed to in the prefiling conference.

6

And I have, as an exhibit here that we can hand out, a

7

map of the various locations at which it was posted.

8
9

CHMN. CHENAL:

We also have

Let's make this Exhibit 1 to

the prehearing conference.

10

(Exhibit 1 was marked.)

11

MS. GRABEL:

And just for the record, all

12

exhibits regarding notice requirements are marked and

13

have been filed and docketed as Exhibit DCR-5, and this

14

map is DCR-5C.

15
16

CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay.

And I did see this last

night when I was reviewing the exhibits.

Very good.

17

Let's go to the agenda just to verify if the

18

applicant or if, Ms. Scott, if you have any objections

19

to the agenda as written.

20

MS. GRABEL:

Chairman, I think -- I don't

21

have any objections to the agenda necessarily.

I would

22

note, however, that Item 7, that discusses the tour,

23

states, on the last line on Page 2 and the first line

24

on Page 3, that members of the public may follow the

25

Committee's tour.

And I'm not sure how that

COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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1

logistically could be accomplished, given the fact that

2

it's a helicopter tour.

3

the virtual tour," because it's identical to the aerial

4

tour that the Committee will take and it's on our

5

project website and it's been filed as an exhibit in

6

the record.

7

CHMN. CHENAL:

You might add, "by virtue of

I think what we'll do is I

8

will file a revised agenda.

9

it to provide where the tour will start, based on the

10

itinerary that's been supplied, and maybe delete that

11

sentence.

12

points where the helicopter will hover will be marked,

13

and those are places where the public can, either

14

before, probably not during, but after, have the

15

opportunity to recreate the tour in that way.

16

And I think I will revise

But maybe some language that, yeah, that the

MS. GRABEL:

That's fine.

Or if they want to

17

access the virtual tour, the hover points are the same

18

as the hover points that the Committee will be

19

experiencing during the actual aerial tour.

20

CHMN. CHENAL:

I'm mostly going to revise the

21

language in Paragraph 7 that there will be no testimony

22

or discussion among the Committee Members, except on

23

record before a court reporter.

24

later.

25

no discussion, you know, on anything relating to the

We'll get into that

But that will be deleted, because there will be

COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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Is there anything else?

3

MS. GRABEL:

4

CHMN. CHENAL:

Nothing further.
Thank you.

Is there anything

else regarding the agenda, I should say.

6

All right.

The hearing, let's talk about

7

that for a moment.

8

Hearing, but the Phoenix portion to commence the

9

hearing will start January 22nd at 1:00 p.m.

It's outlined in the Notice of

There

10

will be a 6:00 p.m. public comment hearing that

11

evening.

12

at 9:00 a.m.

13

The hearing will resume January 23rd and 24th

The tour will then -- we'll then move the

14

hearing site to Quartzsite, Arizona, and January 27th

15

at 11:00 a.m. the tour will commence, for those that

16

wish to take it, starting at 11:00 a.m.

17

come back at 4:00 p.m. to discuss the tour and answer

18

any questions related to that, and then at 5:30 there

19

will be a public comment hearing.

20

day the hearing will resume in Quartzsite at 9:00 a.m.

21

12

application during the tour.

2

5

01/15/2020

Then we'll

And then the next

And then the hearing will come back to

22

Phoenix February 6th starting at 10:00 a.m. and

23

February 7th starting at 9:00 a.m.

24

MS. GRABEL:

Yep.

25

CHMN. CHENAL:
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com
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13

1

should have sign-in forms for the hearing and public

2

comment sessions to include name, address, phone, or

3

e-mail, so we can have an ability to contact the people

4

that provide public comment.

5

CEC conditions kind of address when those people need

6

to be contacted, for example, if there's an effort to

7

extend the length of the CEC; so that's the reason for

8

that.

9

And some of the standard

Is there any need for security at any of the

10

locations?

11

hearing there was a need for security, totally

12

different case.

13

aware of that there was a need for security.

14
15

But there was a previous case that I'm

MS. GRABEL:

Chairman, we haven't discussed

that.

16
17

I state that because at the last Quartzsite

Ali, do you think that there's a need for
security.

18

MR. AMIRALI:

19

MS. GRABEL:

No.
We haven't had any public

20

opposition to the project because of the stakeholder

21

outreach, and so we don't anticipate any issues.

22
23

CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay, probably won't be

necessary.

24

And we obviously have hearing venues.

25

MS. GRABEL:

Yes.

COASH & COASH, INC.
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01/15/2020

Why don't you, just for the

2

record, state where the venues are in Phoenix and

3

Quartzsite.

4

MS. GRABEL:

14

Sure.

The first hearing venue

5

is at the Phoenix Plaza Conference Center in the Code

6

Talker Conference Room, that's located at 2909 North

7

Central Avenue in Phoenix, and it's on the second floor

8

of the retail center there next to the parking garage.

9

The second one is at the Riggles RV and Event Center,

10

it's the largest conference center available in

11

Quartzsite, Arizona, and that's at 240 North Riggles

12

Avenue in Quartzsite.

13
14

CHMN. CHENAL:

will be the same Phoenix location?

15
16

Then coming back to Phoenix

MS. GRABEL:

Exactly, the same Phoenix Plaza

Conference Center location.

17

CHMN. CHENAL:

All right.

We'll need --

18

obviously we'll have our breaks every 90 minutes for

19

the benefit of the court reporter.

20

WiFi.

21

MS. GRABEL:

We'll need robust

We have hired two different AV

22

teams.

The AEPCO team was not available the second or

23

the third week, and so we have -- we are training the

24

next best AV people for our Transmission Line Siting

25

proceeding.

So he's going to shadow the AEPCO team the

COASH & COASH, INC.
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first week and then provide the same.

2

We're doing the best we can by way of WiFi in

3

Quartzsite.

4

the WiFi to you.

5

hopefully will make the documents a little more

6

electronically accessible.

7
8

He says he's got what he needs to bring
And you do have the iPads, which

CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay.

Well, we'll do the best

we can.

9

MS. GRABEL:

10
11

Right.

CHMN. CHENAL:
tough to beat.

12

But the AEPCO team is kind of

They are the gold standard.

MS. GRABEL:

We needed a Plan B.

I spoke to

13

other lawyers, I called everywhere, and they're like,

14

we definitely need an alternative.

15
16

CHMN. CHENAL:

Well, we'll hold our breath

and hope for the best.

17

MS. GRABEL:

18

MS. COBB:

Right.
My understanding from Marta is

19

that they are -- she is going to meet with Mr. Garcia

20

after he's able to shadow the AEPCO team that first

21

week and will make sure he's up to speed on what he

22

needs.

23

CHMN. CHENAL:

24

All right.

25

15

Perfect.

Let's talk about the tour

logistics and the virtual tour.
COASH & COASH, INC.
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1

mentioned there's going to be a virtual tour of the

2

entire line, is that correct?

3

MS. GRABEL:

4

CHMN. CHENAL:

5

Correct.

Yes.

Then let's talk about tour

logistics.

6

MS. GRABEL:

7

CHMN. CHENAL:

8

MS. GRABEL:

9

16

Okay.

The actual physical tour?

Yes.

Okay.

So the logistics are that

the DCR team will meet the Committee Members at the RV

10

Riggles Resort in Quartzsite and we will transport them

11

in cars to the Quartzsite airport.

12

will be waiting there on pads.

13

The helicopters

We do have a tour exhibit, that we can hand

14

out here, which talks about the proposed route tour

15

schedule and protocol and also attaches the script.

16

Eli, do you want to hand this out.

17

CHMN. CHENAL:

18

(Exhibit 2 was marked.)

19

MS. GRABEL:

20

CEC.

21

top of your head?

Let's make that Exhibit 2.

This is also an exhibit to the

Do you recall what exhibit number it is off the

22

MR. ANCHARSKI:

23

MS. GRABEL:

24

So as Exhibit CEC -- or, not CEC.

25

Exhibit 9.

Exhibit 9, thank you.
As DCR

Exhibit 9 discusses, we'll give sort of an overview of
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com

602-258-1440
Phoenix, AZ

LS CASE NO. 185

PREHEARING CONFERENCE

01/15/2020

17

1

what the protocol should be, not talking while we're in

2

flight.

3

Mr. Amirali and Mr. Lowell Rogers, who will read the

4

scripts that have been attached here and filed as an

5

exhibit, they'll read them verbatim.

6

the communications will be recorded through the

7

helicopter communication system as evidence that there

8

was no discussions.

It identifies the DCR representatives,

During the flight

9

And after the entire tour, which we

10

anticipate won't take longer than two to two and a half

11

hours, we will drive the Committee Members back from

12

the Quartzsite airport to the RV Riggles Resort Event

13

Center, where we can then have the hearing to commence

14

at 4:00.

15

CHMN. CHENAL:

And I think that's what we've

16

talked about previously, and that sounds like a good

17

plan.

18

I was discussing with my assistant before the

19

hearing restricting the Committee Members, I guess, to

20

not speaking during the tour.

21

difficult, but I guess that's certainly one

22

alternative, don't speak for two hours.

23

don't speak about anything having to do with the

24

application or the project for two hours, which seems a

25

little more manageable.
COASH & COASH, INC.
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18

recorded, to your understanding?

2

MS. GRABEL:

3

As a practical matter, it is pretty loud in a

4
5

Everything will be recorded.

helicopter; it's not that conducive to conversation.
MR. AMIRALI:

6

doesn't matter.

7

right here.

Actually, with headsets it

It will feel like you're speaking

All the ambient noises cancels out.

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

Yep, very familiar with that.

9

So I think there will have to be an

10

admonition.

11

site the 27th at 11:00 a.m. that there will not be a

12

court reporter on board, but everything will be

13

recorded, but there cannot be any discussion at all

14

regarding anything having to do with the application or

15

the project and that the script will be read over the

16

hover points.

17
18
19

I'll make the admonition at the hearing

And are the hover points -- yes, they have a
latitude and longitude for the hover points.
MR. ANCHARSKI:

And they're also included on

20

the foldout map that's on the second page, which was

21

printed upside down somehow.

22

CHMN. CHENAL:

And so -- okay.

Then when we

23

come back, we'll meet at 4:00 on the 27th at the

24

hearing site and resume the hearing, then discuss

25

anything that was seen during the tour and questions
COASH & COASH, INC.
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I think that's a good way to do it.

First question I have is:

Are the hover

3

points points where someone could recreate that in a

4

car?

5

can drive to, I guess is the question?

6

In other words, is it over an area where a car

MR. AMIRALI:

Yes, every part of this line

7

can be driven to.

8

right underneath the line is Copper Bottom Pass.

9

from that, every part can be driven.

The only part where you can't go
Aside

There may not be

10

a road there and it may be a four-wheel drive, but

11

every part can be driven.

12

seen without the use of binoculars.

13

CHMN. CHENAL:

At least every part can be

So if someone wanted to, they

14

could, in either a car or four-wheel drive, access the

15

points where -- the hover points --

16

MR. AMIRALI:

17

CHMN. CHENAL:

18

MR. AMIRALI:

19

CHMN. CHENAL:

Yes.
-- based on the tour, right?
Yes, sir.
Number two:

The Google tour,

20

the virtual tour, will basically be a flyover of all

21

those points?

22

MR. AMIRALI:

23

MS. GRABEL:

24

CHMN. CHENAL:

25

19

Yes, sir.
That's correct.
So someone will be able to

basically see exactly what is seen in the helicopter
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We have the CEC exhibit, the

3

script.

4

tour, press pause at each hover point, and read the

5

narrative and they'll see what it is the Committee will

6

see.

7

They could take the script, play the virtual

CHMN. CHENAL:

Now, when we come back -- I

8

guess we have to discuss how do we want to make the

9

record of that, other than obviously we'll say we just

10

came back, we're on the record, we just completed the

11

tour, and I think Marta had asked the question earlier.

12

Is it sufficient to simply state that the only

13

substantive conversation that occurred was basically

14

the script that's exhibit -- you know, one of the

15

exhibits at the hearing, or do we prefer to have that

16

verbatim in the record, typed into the record, the

17

actual script itself?

18

MS. GRABEL:

I think it might be preferable

19

to just have the recording transcribed and submitted as

20

a later exhibit.

21

verbatim into the record, we'll just have the

22

transcription of what was recorded from the helicopter

23

as part of the record that way.

24
25

And so rather than reading it

CHMN. CHENAL:

Right.

I wasn't clear.

When

we come back, would you rather say -- would you rather
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1

have me say -- and this is really the record for you.

2

Would you rather have me say, we just completed the

3

tour.

4

what is it?

What was stated was read verbatim on exhibit --

5

MS. GRABEL:

6

CHMN. CHENAL:

7

MS. GRABEL:

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

CEC-9.
Yeah, CEC-9.

Actually, DCR-9.
Or would you rather the record

9

read, we came back and the following was what was read

10

during the tour, and actually have it typed out in the

11

transcript?

12
13
14

MS. GRABEL:

I think I would prefer the

former, just for efficiency, timeliness.
CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay.

So that will save

15

someone actually having to type the entire script as

16

part of the transcript, and we'll just make that an

17

attachment.

18

makes more sense to me, but I want to make sure your

19

record is the way you want it.

And I think that will be -- yeah, that

20

MS. GRABEL:

21

think we have it in the record.

22

21

I'm comfortable with it.

CHMN. CHENAL:

All right.

I

Will there be four

23

members of the Committee -- to my knowledge, there's

24

going to be eight Committee Members that are going to

25

be on the tour.

So will there be four and four?
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MS. GRABEL:

2

CHMN. CHENAL:

01/15/2020

Yes, sir.
I mean, four in one

3

helicopter, four in the other?

4

a quorum.

5

concerns, I think that alleviates some of it right

6

there.

Incidentally, it's not

So to the extent there are Open Meeting law

7

MS. GRABEL:

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

9

22

Oh, that's interesting.
But I think there just won't

be any conversation about it.

And I'm going to

10

admonish everyone not to do it, and if someone starts,

11

to just stop it and shut it down.

12

you know, again, we can -- we'll have a recording of

13

it.

14

if someone wants to go back later and listen to it to

15

verify nothing untoward was said -- I just want to make

16

sure.

17

know, to be able to do this.

18

applicant making it available.

19

careful we can avoid any Open Meeting issues and I

20

think it will be a great benefit, but I want to be

21

careful and make sure no one makes a mistake.

22
23

And we'll have --

Maybe we make the recording an exhibit as well so

This is unusual.

I think it's wonderful, you
I appreciate the
And I think if we're

Does anyone have any thoughts, concerns,
suggestions regarding the tour protocol?

24

(No response.)

25

CHMN. CHENAL:
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1

that has to be signed, I noticed that.

It's an

2

individual release, it's not on behalf of the State or

3

any agency.

4

don't think it implicates the State or the Attorney

5

General's Office or any State agency.

6

individual person, I guess, has the right to, you know,

7

sign it or not sign it and not go on the tour.

It's just an individual release, so I

8

MS. GRABEL:

9

CHMN. CHENAL:

It's just the

Right.
Now, I do note, and I will

10

just put this out for the record, I guess everyone

11

can -- you know, when we provide it to the Committee,

12

those that are going to take the tour, you know, we'll

13

allow that they can have it reviewed by an attorney and

14

get any guidance they want.

15

I will state this just for the applicant's

16

consideration.

17

provisions are -- except out negligence on behalf of

18

the party that's seeking the release, so I guess I'd

19

ask the applicant consider that.

20

written in a way that does not -- for example, it's a

21

release of all claims, as opposed to all claims except

22

those arising, say, from the negligence of -- wait a

23

second.

24
25

A lot of times releases and indemnity

MS. GRABEL:

I mean, this is

It's actually DCR; it's not the

helicopter company.
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CHMN. CHENAL:

2

MS. GRABEL:

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

01/15/2020

Right, it's DCRT.

Right.
And same with the indemnity,

4

it's indemnifying and saying all claims.

5

the applicant to consider putting what I consider is a

6

pretty usual exception excepting out, you know,

7

negligence of the applicant.

8

MS. GRABEL:

9

MR. AMIRALI:

10

24

And I'd ask

Okay, we will consider that.
We will consider that.

CHMN. CHENAL:

I will ask you to consider

11

that.

And if you are agreeable to that, send it back,

12

and we will send that out, then, to the Committee.

13

not representing the Committee Members, but I've done

14

more of these than I can count, and I think that's not

15

an unusual request, certainly not something that you

16

have not heard before I'm sure.

17

MS. GRABEL:

18

I will say one more thing with respect to the

Certainly.

I'm

We will relay that.

19

tour.

You might want to let Committee Members know

20

that there's a limitation on what they can take,

21

because there's a weight limitation on the helicopters.

22

So we will have our representatives still at the

23

Quartzsite airport if they want to leave their personal

24

belongings, but I think they're limited to the tour

25

protocol, the script, and maybe a pen and a note pad.
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MR. AMIRALI:

2

CHMN. CHENAL:

3

01/15/2020

That's about it, yeah.
Fair enough.

Weight and

balance, weight and balance.

4

MS. GRABEL:

5

MR. AMIRALI:

6

CHMN. CHENAL:

7

Now let's go to -- and I appreciate the

8

Correct.
Also space.
And space.

Okay, wonderful.

applicant considering that very much.

9

Let's talk about the procedural order.

I've

10

received, you know, the witness summaries and the

11

exhibits from the applicant.

12

you kind of how you see your role and the Corporation

13

Commission's role in this, witnesses and time and just

14

what you think so far as to what your role is going to

15

be.

16

MS. SCOTT:

So Ms. Scott, let me ask

Our role will be to present a

17

witness, Margaret Little.

18

prefiled testimony in question and answer format.

19

I apologize, we weren't able to get that filed

20

yesterday, but we have some serious resource

21

constraints that we're working with.

22

able to review the economic study yet, which was -- we

23

received yesterday, and so she's going to need more

24

time to review that.

25

And she has done some
And

And she was not

And we hope to accomplish a lot through
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1

cross-examination of witnesses at the hearing; but with

2

that said, I think we'd ask for a little flexibility

3

there.

4

to handle the first couple days of the hearing because

5

Stephen Emedi and myself have conflicts.

6

be, I don't know if the applicant would be amenable to

7

allowing us, if we need to, to maybe question a witness

8

again that latter part of the hearing.

We have a younger attorney that's going to have

9

MS. GRABEL:

So if need

We will do whatever we can to

10

accommodate Commission Staff's needs.

11

that we would have some trouble with is Judy Chang,

12

she's with the Brattle Group.

13

and she's out of New York and we have to pay for her to

14

fly and fly back.

15

Ms. Chang, they could do that by phone.

16

The only witness

She prepared the report

So perhaps if Staff needed to recall

CHMN. CHENAL:

Yeah, that would be fine.

And

17

I just want to make it really clear.

18

case.

19

some of the issues.

20

some expert testimony here which has not been seen yet.

21

So I think, in fairness, we have to have your witness

22

have the opportunity to review it and provide the

23

rebuttal testimony.

24

be done?

25

This is a large

We'll get into this in a little more detail,

MS. SCOTT:

We have some expert, you know,

So how soon do you think that can

I have Toby on the phone.
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1

Toby, did you hear the question?

2

MS. LITTLE:

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

4

MS. LITTLE:

5

I did.
Yes.

hope that it will be filed this afternoon.
CHMN. CHENAL:

7

MS. GRABEL:

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

10

Can you guys hear me?

It's my understanding and our

6

9

27

Oh, that's fine.

That's not a problem at all.
Yeah, I was thinking it was

going to mean in the middle of the hearing.

So that's

absolutely no problem.

11

MS. SCOTT:

We understand, though, that the

12

PowerPoint format is the one that's preferred.

13

could do a PowerPoint and have that filed probably

14

early next week, if that would be all right.

15

as I said, testimony now in Q and A format.

16

PowerPoint would reflect pretty much what the testimony

17

is right now.

18
19

CHMN. CHENAL:

We have,
The

Well, the hearing -- when is

Ms. -- is it Chang?

20

MS. GRABEL:

21

CHMN. CHENAL:

22

And we

Yes.
When is she anticipated to be

called?

23

MS. GRABEL:

I want to call her on Thursday.

24

CHMN. CHENAL:

25

MS. GRABEL:

On Thursday.

Or early Friday would be the
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latest.
CHMN. CHENAL:

Thursday or Friday.

Well, if

3

you could get it done, Ms. Scott -- I mean, I see the

4

issue here.

5

PowerPoint is going to basically mimic the question and

6

answer testimony that's going to be filed hopefully

7

this afternoon, certainly by tomorrow, and this is

8

simply basically a PowerPoint format of what you're

9

going to file this afternoon, then would Tuesday --

If it would be possible to get -- if the

10

would that give you enough time to do the PowerPoint,

11

by Tuesday?

12

MS. SCOTT:

13

MS. LITTLE:

Yes, I think that will work.

14

MS. GRABEL:

Is the PowerPoint presentation

15
16
17
18

make-work for you?

Toby, would Tuesday be all right?

I mean, I don't feel --

MS. SCOTT:

Would you want us to put anything

on the economic study in it or not?
CHMN. CHENAL:

Well, this goes into how to

19

present a case 101.

I mean, it's economics.

And if

20

it's going to be getting into the material that's going

21

to be in Ms. Chang's report, which I briefly reviewed

22

yesterday, I think a PowerPoint presentation with some

23

graphics would be more easily understood by the

24

Committee than simply a question and answer format like

25

at a deposition.

I would encourage you to do it.
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And, you know, normally we

2

would of course try to abide by all of the deadlines in

3

your procedural orders, but this case --

4

CHMN. CHENAL:

Well, it isn't even a resource

5

limitation; there's no need to apologize.

6

you haven't seen Ms. Chang's proposed testimony until

7

last night or yesterday, so I think you're fine in

8

coming up with the timeline we just discussed.

9
10
11
12

MS. SCOTT:

I'm assuming

Okay.

CHMN. CHENAL:

So I don't think the applicant

is concerned about that.
MS. GRABEL:

No.

Just for the record, we did

13

respond to several data requests that Staff served on

14

us that gave a high-level overview of a lot of the

15

things that Ms. Chang talked about, but not the

16

economics report, and it said it would supplement the

17

DR with the report.

18

CHMN. CHENAL:

So is that comfortable, then,

19

Ms. Scott and Ms. Little, that kind of a time frame, to

20

get the question and answer in by this afternoon or

21

certainly by tomorrow morning, and then the PowerPoint

22

by Tuesday?

23

MS. SCOTT:

24

MS. LITTLE:

25

MS. SCOTT:

Toby, I -Go ahead.
I think that should work, but
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it's you that needs to confirm that.

2

MS. LITTLE:

I am fine with the timeline as

3

far as the PowerPoint goes.

4

kind of out of my hands, it's in the review process.

5

As soon as they can make it happen.

6
7

30

CHMN. CHENAL:

The testimony right now is

Do the best you can.

Do the

best you can, that's all we'll ask at this point.

8

MS. LITTLE:

Okay.

9

CHMN. CHENAL:

You know, just do the best you

10

can.

And I understand that Ms. Chang's testimony has

11

already been prepared and she's going to be on deck for

12

Thursday or maybe Friday.

13

all, we'll have Ms. Chang -- give her the opportunity

14

to appear again via telephone so that there's no

15

prejudice to anybody, okay?

16

testimony is going to be important for the record and

17

for the Committee, so I want to make allowances to make

18

sure everyone has a fair opportunity to present that

19

testimony and any rebuttal and, you know, reply

20

testimony to kind of make sure that the record is clear

21

and everyone can get their points across.

22

sound fair to everybody?

23

MS. GRABEL:

24

MS. SCOTT:

25

CHMN. CHENAL:

If there's any surprise at

But I expect expert

Does that

Yes, sir.
Yeah, we appreciate that.
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1

you would be so kind, Ms. Scott, to make sure that -- I

2

don't have to tell you what the rules are at the

3

Corporation Commission as to filing.

4

you can, if you could shoot an e-mail of it to us with

5

that information --

6

MS. SCOTT:

7

CHMN. CHENAL:

But as soon as

Sure.
-- because sometimes the hard

8

copies, there's a delay there, and I think the sooner

9

we get it the better.

10

MS. SCOTT:

Okay.

11

CHMN. CHENAL:

Now let's talk about issues

12

that I see that I think -- I want to give everyone a

13

fair opportunity to make their presentation, and then

14

we'll talk about how much time this is going to take.

15

This is basically an application for a

16

project that was previously considered by the Line

17

Siting Committee and the Commission; we all know that.

18

And the Line Siting Committee approved it, but the

19

Corporation Commission did not.

20

right now, I'm going to make as a Chairman's exhibit

21

the order from the Corporation Commission which

22

includes the Line Siting Committee's decision, because

23

I think it's important that the record address the

24

concerns with the first case and differentiate why this

25

is different than the previous case.
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1

the applicant will get into the environmental issues.

2

It's not going to go through the Kofa wilderness area,

3

and I think that's an easy differentiation.

4

32

When I read the application and compared

5

what's in the application to the previous decision of

6

the Corporation Commission and the reasons that were

7

given on need, I think it's important that the

8

applicant make sure that it addresses it.

9

looked at the exhibits last night, I could see there

Now, when I

10

was a lot of material in there on that issue.

11

a little concerned, when I was reading the application,

12

and it's just the way they're set up, that it addressed

13

it, but obviously addressed it from a 20,000-foot level

14

in kind of conclusory statements, which, you know, I

15

get that that's necessary.

16

at the exhibits, you know, I see there's a lot of

17

material in here that addresses that need.

18

that's important and I just think that's going to be

19

important to the Committee Members and it shouldn't be

20

any surprise, but that's going to take some time,

21

right?

22

So I was

And having read and looked

And I think

And so, you know, we've got two and a half

23

days in Phoenix, we basically have one and a half days

24

in Quartzsite, and we basically have two days back in

25

Phoenix, right?
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Correct.
So, I mean, I expect and hope

3

that's enough time, but I don't have control over the

4

Committee, I don't have control over the questions

5

they're going to ask, how long the explanations are

6

going to take.

7

project and we want a very complete record, you know,

8

for the benefit of the Commission.

9

any idea what the -- I mean, I don't talk with the

I think everyone realizes this is a big

And I don't have

10

Committee really about what's in the application and in

11

the testimony, so I anticipate there's going to be

12

questions.

13

You know, one thing I thought of is we don't

14

necessarily have to complete the hearings at 5:00 p.m.

15

at night if we don't want to, if we want to continue to

16

use the time.

17

we need to, if we see that it's taking a little longer.

18

I'm hopeful that's enough time, but, you know, we've

19

got engineering, we've got the environmental.

20

environmental seems it's going to be pretty

21

straightforward; I mean, the concerns that were in the

22

first case seem to have been dealt with in this case.

23

But the need issue I think is pretty complex, and I

24

think it's something that we're going to spend a little

25

time on.

And I'm perfectly willing to do that if
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I will also tell you that -- I'm thinking out

2

loud now.

I'm not going to direct the applicant to do

3

it.

4

hearing it would be important to have a Cal ISO person,

5

a representative, to address the Committee on issues of

6

control of the line and some of the things that are in

7

the application.

But I wonder if at the Quartzsite portion of the

8

MS. GRABEL:

Okay.

9

CHMN. CHENAL:

I think that would be

10

important.

11

present their case.

12

since this is going to be a line that's, what, almost

13

100 miles of a line in Arizona, but it's going to be

14

under the operational control of Cal ISO, it's going to

15

raise questions, and I think that would be important to

16

have someone to be able to answer those questions.

17

I can't direct the applicant on how to
But in my mind, having someone --

MR. AMIRALI:

Mr. Chairman, may I ask, can

18

you elaborate a little bit on the control aspects of

19

the -- what you mean by that?

20

us -- one, you know, it will determine whether ISO will

21

be able to address that or not or like is it something

22

that we can address.

23

CHMN. CHENAL:

Because that would allow

Well, I don't have the

24

application in front of me, I have everything but the

25

application, but I can go get it.
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a slide in the initial application that indicated that

2

this line would be under the control --

3

MS. GRABEL:

4

MR. AMIRALI:

5

CHMN. CHENAL:

That's correct.
That is correct.
-- of Cal ISO.

So what does

6

that mean?

7

the line?

8

What's the source of the power in terms of the

9

generation?

Who controls how much power comes across
Who controls the source of that power?

Will that power coming into California

10

lessen the power that's then available for Arizona in

11

the grid, the Palo Verde hub?

12

that were raised in the first hearing.

13

MR. AMIRALI:

14

CHMN. CHENAL:

These are the concerns

That is correct.
And I think since, from what I

15

remember reading in the application, this line will be

16

under the total control of Cal ISO, you know, I think

17

we need to flesh out what that means.

18

MS. GRABEL:

Is this something you want on

19

the record or at public comment?

20

comment is on the record.

21

under oath?

22

35

CHMN. CHENAL:

I guess public

But do you want a witness

I think a witness under oath,

23

Ms. Grabel, would be -- if possible, would be

24

important.

25

to ask questions, so that kind of negates the ability

Because public comment we're not supposed
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1

to get into that.

2

minute, but, you know, it was just in reviewing the

3

materials last night that I think this idea came to me

4

that I suspect the Committee will have some questions

5

about that.

6
7

And I know this is kind of last

MS. GRABEL:

Can we go off the record for one

moment?

8
9

36

CHMN. CHENAL:
if we do this.

We certainly may.

How about

Let's take a five-minute break.

10

(Off the record from 2:24 p.m. to 2:28 p.m.)

11

CHMN. CHENAL:

Ms. Grabel, I think you wanted

12

to say something as to the why it could be difficult to

13

get a witness.

14

MS. GRABEL:

Sure.

So the California ISO,

15

just by way of background, was created by the

16

California legislature in order to enable restructuring

17

of the electric market in California I think in 1996.

18

And as a result, any utility that's a member of the Cal

19

ISO and participates in the competitive market has to

20

turn over their transmission infrastructure.

21

DCR in this project, Ten West, is no different than any

22

other transmission line that is operated or owned by a

23

member of the Cal ISO.

24
25

And so

And please correct me, Ali, if I make a
mistake.
COASH & COASH, INC.
www.coashandcoash.com

602-258-1440
Phoenix, AZ

LS CASE NO. 185

1

PREHEARING CONFERENCE

01/15/2020

37

Mr. Amirali worked for the California ISO for

2

a period of years, he's very familiar with it, and can

3

answer any questions that the Committee may have in the

4

event we're not able to get an actual representative of

5

the Cal ISO on the project.

6

questions.

7

CHMN. CHENAL:

So if that satisfies your

So let's see if we can't get

8

someone either in person or on the phone, Plan B.

9

Plan A, in person; Plan B, on the phone; Plan C, Ali

10

can testify and talk about the issues.

11
12

MS. GRABEL:

And may I say one more thing,

Chairman?

13

CHMN. CHENAL:

14

MS. GRABEL:

Sure.

I just want to correct one quick

15

thing.

At the very beginning of this conversation you

16

said that this project is the same as the one that was

17

brought before the Commission.

18

CHMN. CHENAL:

19

MS. GRABEL:

20

CHMN. CHENAL:

21

MS. GRABEL:

22

CHMN. CHENAL:

23

Oh, I didn't mean to say that.

Okay.

Because it is different.

No, it's different.

It's much different.
I didn't mean to say that.

It's a 500 kV line connecting --

24

MS. GRABEL:

Two substations.

25

CHMN. CHENAL:
COASH & COASH, INC.
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I appreciate there's differences.

2

MS. GRABEL:

Okay.

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

So I was referring to

4

Subpart J of the application.

5

don't know what subpart it is, but it's Page 8 and it

6

says, project description.

7

Transmission will own and operate this new transmission

8

interstate transmission line and the California

9

Independent System Operator will have the operational

10
11

And it's not tabbed -- I

Once completed, DCR

control of the facility.
So that, I think, we need to flesh out.

12

Because in the decision of the Commission on the

13

Decision 130 one of the comments made, among others,

14

was the applicant's proposal would have allowed the

15

expansion of Cal ISO's control area into Arizona,

16

limiting Arizona's ability to determine FERC tariffs

17

related to the line inside Arizona borders, and also

18

talked about transporting an additional 600 megawatts

19

of power, which could strain Arizona's grid, et cetera.

20

So I think this idea of operational control,

21

just what that means and how that works, would be

22

important for the record.

23

only because I'd like to know, and I think the

24

Committee would like to know, but I think it's very

25

important for the applicant to again address the
COASH & COASH, INC.
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specific concerns that the Commission had.

2

MS. GRABEL:

Absolutely.

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay.

And I guess that was my

4

transition into the question of how long this hearing

5

is going to take.

6

complete it within time, and I'm certainly prepared to

7

have the hearing extend longer during the days to make

8

that happen, because I know logically it would be very

9

difficult to continue it past the time that we've set

And, you know, we'll do our best to

10

for it.

Although, if we have to, we will, and we'll

11

have the rest of it in Phoenix.

12

we'll get it done; but if not, we'll work on getting

13

some dates as soon thereafter as possible to complete

14

this.

15

MS. GRABEL:

I'm fully confident

Thank you, Chairman.

By our

16

calculation, I think we have until February 17th to

17

complete the hearing.

18

needed.

19

So if we do have additional time

CHMN. CHENAL:

Well, I think we have longer

20

than that.

I think we have to start the hearing

21

between -- I don't think we have to -- we have to issue

22

it within 180 days, but I think we have to start the

23

hearing between 30 and 60 days after notice -- after

24

the application is essentially filed, but then we have

25

180 days to actually issue the CEC.
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The statute says

2

the hearing or hearings shall be held not less than 30

3

days, no more than 60 days.

4

can continue the hearing past the deadline?

5

CHMN. CHENAL:

40

So does that mean that you

Well, I interpret it like

6

that, because it also says that we have to issue the

7

CEC within 180 days.

8

But I don't think that I have held the belief that the

9

hearings have to be done between that 30 and 60 days,

We'll have it done between then.

10

and I can tell you in SunZia we didn't.

We went well

11

over that.

12

I expect that we'll get it done in the time that we set

13

for it.

14

to make sure that we have a good record --

But in any event, let's be optimistic, and

Okay, enough on that.

And again, I just want

15

MS. GRABEL:

Absolutely.

16

CHMN. CHENAL:

17

Is there any -- are there any other matters

-- which I know we will.

18

or issues regarding any of the issues of the case that

19

we think we need to address now?

20

any.

But I don't know, Ms. Scott, if you have any.

21

MS. SCOTT:

22

MS. GRABEL:

23

I mean, I don't have

I don't think so.
I have two logistical questions.

Are you thinking issues in terms of substantive issues?

24

CHMN. CHENAL:

25

MS. GRABEL:

Substantive issues.

Okay, no.
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2

procedural issues then.

3

MS. GRABEL:

01/15/2020

Well, let's talk about your

Okay, my procedural issues.

The

4

first is that the procedural order requires us to give

5

three-ring binders to the Committee Members with the

6

exhibits in them.

7

we need to do both?

8

written.

9

asking, want to make sure we comply.

10

41

Because we are giving them iPads, do
I know some Members prefer the

And we're happy to do both, we're just

CHMN. CHENAL:

Let's do this.

Marie, I'm

11

going to ask you to contact the Committee Members and

12

ask who wants three-ring binders, given that we'll have

13

iPads, and then if you could contact Ms. Grabel.

14

then we can have that number, plus maybe one or two

15

extra, just in case.

16

MS. GRABEL:

Sure.

17

CHMN. CHENAL:

And

Okay.

Let's do that so we don't kill

18

too many trees for binders that are picked up at the

19

end of hearings and then discarded.

20

MS. GRABEL:

Exactly.

And my second question

21

was, is it possible to stipulate to the admissibility

22

of the exhibits, so that we don't have to create a

23

foundation with each witness?

24
25

CHMN. CHENAL:
do that.

I don't know if we're going to

But we have had no issues with -- I mean,
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1

it's been a very liberal admissibility policy.

2

the only time in the tenure that I've had here that

3

I've excluded certain exhibits was rank hearsay, and I

4

mean rank hearsay, in the SunZia case that was brought

5

up at the last minute.

6

addressed by one of your witnesses, and I just think it

7

would be easier if we just do it like we have in the

8

past.

9

you can move them all in.

10
11
12

I think

Every exhibit is going to be

And generally they're discussed, and at the end

MS. GRABEL:

Okay.

Discuss them and move

them at the end, that's fine.
CHMN. CHENAL:

Yeah.

And I think it's better

13

that there be a little foundation.

14

like in Superior Court.

15

MS. GRABEL:

16

CHMN. CHENAL:

I mean, it's not

Right.
But I think if there's

17

discussion about the exhibits, what they are or why

18

they're important and have a question and answer, I

19

think that just makes it better.

20

MS. GRABEL:

21

CHMN. CHENAL:

22

Okay, certainly.

don't worry.

23

MS. GRABEL:

24

CHMN. CHENAL:

25

This is not an evidence class,

Okay.
Is there any litigation

related to this project?
COASH & COASH, INC.
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No, sir.
With regard to the CEC, the

3

only comment I have is, and I'm not sure how we do

4

this, but there's no legal description.

5

draft CEC, I'm just talking about the exhibit that's

6

attached.

7

Committee has gotten to a point where we like to have

8

both a map and the legal description; but again, the

9

projects that we have dealt with more recently have

I mean the

I mean, where possible, I think the

10

been a shorter distance.

11

hundred-mile legal description, I anticipate that would

12

be a problem or problematic.

13

question.

14

MS. GRABEL:

I mean, a 110-mile or a

Maybe I should ask the

Ali, would it be difficult to

15

come up with a legal description of the line, given how

16

long it is?

17
18

MR. AMIRALI:

Again, please elaborate.

What's a legal description?

19

MS. GRABEL:

Meets and bounds.

20

CHMN. CHENAL:

Meets and bounds and like a

21

legal description for a property, you know.

22

west, you know, southeast, a line extending.

23

MR. AMIRALI:

410 feet

Oh, we should be able to.

24

That's just a -- we just have to check with our team as

25

to how long it will take to do that.
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I'm giving you a heads

2

up that this is something that the Committee has been

3

asking for, for the corridor that you're requesting to

4

be on a map, and where possible, a legal description.

5

I can't remember, honestly, if we did that in SunZia or

6

Southline.

7

don't think --

8
9
10

Those are the two very long projects, and I

MS. GRABEL:

I don't think we did in

Southline.
CHMN. CHENAL:

I don't think so.

But again,

11

I think you only have one route, and I don't know how

12

difficult it is to create a legal description for a

13

project of this length.

14

mean, at this day and age it may just be computer

15

generated and it may not be that difficult to do.

16

just throwing out there that there may be some people

17

on the Committee that will request a legal description.

18

I'd hate to have you scrambling in two days to put

19

something like that together.

20

MS. GRABEL:

21

MR. AMIRALI:

22

CHMN. CHENAL:

23
24
25

I just don't know.

But, I

I'm

Sure.
Okay.
What other permits do you --

let me strike that.
Let's talk about the NEPA process and where
you are with that.

I mean, I know the answer to that,
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it's just a leading question.

2

leading question.

3

to put it on the record.

4
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I mean, it's not a

I know the answer to it, but I want

MS. GRABEL:

Certainly.

So the BLM has

5

already issued its record of decision, and we are now

6

putting together the plan of development that is our

7

proposal to comply with the record of decision that the

8

BLM has issued.

9

CHMN. CHENAL:

Are there any other permits

10

that will be needed for this project, other than the

11

CEC?

12

MS. GRABEL:

So obviously there are local

13

permits and right-of-ways and things of that nature.

14

But the other big permit is we need to receive a --

15

what's it called?

16

MR. AMIRALI:

17

MS. GRABEL:

18
19
20
21

CHMN. CHENAL:

Even over the Arizona portion

of the project?
MS. GRABEL:
the project.

23

California.

25

CPCN, Certificate of Public

Convenience and Necessity, from the California PUC.

22

24

CPCN.

Not over the Arizona portion of

That's just the 23-mile portion in

MR. AMIRALI:

Mr. Chairman, even though the

CEQA part -- so CPCN comprises of two parts.
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1

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity, there

2

are two parts.

3

got an environmental assessment.

4

assessment is called CEQA, or California Environmental

5

Quality Act, and that is satisfied with the NEPA

6

document that has been prepared.

7

Public Utilities Commission does opine on the need of

8

the project as well from a California ratepayer's point

9

of view.

It's got a needs assessment and it's
The environmental

But the California

So even though they do not opine on the

10

environmental portion of the line through Arizona, they

11

do opine for it as an asset that is going to be paid

12

for by California ratepayers.

13

CHMN. CHENAL:

14

MR. AMIRALI:

And has that been completed?
We are in the CPCN -- we have

15

already -- we started actually the CPCN process in 2017

16

for the project.

17

for Arizona, the process was waiting for the final

18

environmental impact assessment to be completed.

19

had to wait for that to be completed for us to start

20

the -- formally start the hearing and the testimony

21

process.

22

And the process waited for, just like

We

On December the 20th of 2019 we filed our

23

testimonies for the project, and that has started

24

the -- that kick started the process from the CPCN

25

point of view.

Both us and California Independent
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1

System Operator, according to the requirements set

2

forth by the administrative law judge in the process,

3

filed our testimonies on December the 20th.

4

is -- intervenors have now started asking data

5

requests.

6

by late May of 2020.

7

reply comments during May of 2020.

8

into the hearing process in the June, July time frame.

9
10

There

Intervenors have to file their testimonies
And we'll have -- we'll be filing

CHMN. CHENAL:

Okay.

And then we'll go

And will the need

assessment just concern California?

11

MR. AMIRALI:

Their need assessment

12

actually -- their need assessment actually considers

13

everything.

14

are more concerned with, one, the ratepayer impact,

15

two, the benefit to cost ratio, as set forth by the

16

California requirements for ratepayers to pay for an

17

asset of this nature.

So they look at the whole economic -- they

18

CHMN. CHENAL:

19

California, it's not for Arizona?

20
21

MR. AMIRALI:

MS. GRABEL:

23

MR. AMIRALI:

25

But the need assessment is for

Actually, the needs assessment

for the project.

22

24

47

The region.
It's a total project value,

sir.
CHMN. CHENAL:
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1

going to be -- we're going to make a decision before

2

then.

3

are the things that we'll get into in our hearing.

4
5
6

We won't have the benefit of that.

But those

So the CEQA process and the local permitting
and right-of-way process is really the only thing left?
MS. GRABEL:

The CEQA process is complete.

7

CEQA adopted the NEPA analysis, which is done.

8

just the need portion of the --

9

CHMN. CHENAL:

10

MS. GRABEL:

11

CHMN. CHENAL:

So it's

The need portion.

Correct.
So let's see if there's

12

anything else I have.

13

have any further questions, and I think I've covered

14

the items I wanted to cover in the checklist.

15
16
17

That's what I have.

I don't

So is there anything else we should discuss?
Ms. Scott, anything jump out at you?
MS. SCOTT:

It just occurred to me it might

18

be beneficial.

19

CPUC and the process that they're going through, did

20

they go through a similar process the last time?

This last item that we discussed, the

21

MR. AMIRALI:

22

MS. SCOTT:

Yeah.
It might be interesting, at least

23

for the Staff, to see that analysis that was done by

24

them the last time.

25

48

MS. GRABEL:

Okay.
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MS. SCOTT:

3

CHMN. CHENAL:

4

MS. GRABEL:
Chairman.

Okay, thank you.
Ms. Grabel, anything else?

Nothing further from me,

Thank you.

6

MS. SCOTT:

7

MS. LITTLE:

8

CHMN. CHENAL:

9

49

it for you.

2

5

01/15/2020

Toby, did you have anything?
I don't.

Thank you.

All right.

Well, we'll look

forward to getting the additional testimony from

10

Ms. Little.

We'll start next Wednesday.

11

comes up -- I know Monday is a State holiday.

12

anything comes up between now and the hearing, the

13

start of the hearing, anybody, you know, the

14

intervenors, let me know.

15

can do it telephonically, and we can supplement the

16

record later if we need to, you know, so we address any

17

issues that come up before the hearing.

18

MS. GRABEL:

19

CHMN. CHENAL:

20

We'll schedule a hearing, we

Because we want to maximize

the time that we have.
MS. GRABEL:

22

CHMN. CHENAL:

Excellent, thank you.
If there's nothing else, I'll

look forward to seeing everyone next Wednesday.

24
25

But if

Okay.

21

23

If anything

(The prehearing conference concluded at
2:47 p.m.)
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3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings
were taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a
full, true, and accurate record of the proceedings all
done to the best of my skill and ability; that the
proceedings were taken down by me in shorthand and
thereafter reduced to print under my direction.
I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any
of the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in
the outcome hereof.
I CERTIFY that I have complied with the
ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJA 7-206 J(1)(g)(1) and (2). Dated at Phoenix,
Arizona, this 20th day of January, 2020.
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TEN WEST LINK

Proposed Route Tour Schedule and Protocol
Tour Background and Protocol
The Chairman of the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting Committee ("Siting
Committee") has requested a tour of the Ten West Link 500 kV transmission line project
("Project"). Given the length of the line and complexity of the terrain, the most efficient and costeffective way for the Committee to take the tour is by helicopter.
During the tour, members of the Siting Committee will travel the 103 .4 mile Arizona portion of
the Project in two helicopters, accompanied by Mr. Ali Amirali and Mr. Lowell Rogers
respectively, as well as other members of the DCR Transmission L.L.C, ("DCRT") team as space
limitations permit. Included in this exhibit is a script that Mr. Amirali and Mr. Rogers will narrate
verbatim during the flight. The script identifies the hover points at which portions of the narrative
will be read, which hover points are identical to those specified in the virtual tour that has been
filed in this docket as Exhibit 8 and will be presented during the public hearing in this matter. The
route tour map included in this exhibit identifies the various hover points. The tour path will start
at hover point #l at the Delaney Substation and end at hover point #10 (Colorado River/AZ
Boarder), visiting each hover point in sequential order, generally flying along the proposed Project
route. To comply with Arizona open meeting laws, no discussion of the tour or Project other than
a reading of this script at the identified hover points will be permitted on route to, from and during
the flight. To ensure compliance with this requirement, in-flight conversations will be recorded
for future transcription and public inspection. Once the tour is complete, the Committee members
will be transported to the hearing location, at which time a public hearing recorded by a court
reporter will commence to entertain questions and discussion about the tour and Project.

Tour Summary (January 27, 2019)
DCRT has arranged for Siting Committee members to be picked up at the Riggles RV and Event
Center located at 240 North Riggles Avenue, Quartzite, Arizona 85346. Before proceeding to the
helicopters, there will be a brief review of the tour protocol. Committee members will then be
transported to the Quartzite airport by automobile, where they will board the helicopters. After
taking off, the Siting Committee members will fly east-bound from the Quartzite airport until they
reach the Project route near 1-10, then fly east to the Delaney substation. From the Delaney
substation, the tour will follow the Proposed Route as described in the script for 103 .4 miles until
the California-Arizona border. During the aerial tour, the helicopters will hover for one to three
minutes over the points identified in the script, during which time Mr. Amirali and Mr. Rogers
will read from the script an explanation of the key points and features at each location. After
reaching the Colorado River, the helicopters will tum back and follow the Proposed Route until
they reach 1-95, at which point they will divert from the Proposed Route and return to the Quartzite
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airport. From there, the Committee members will be transported by vehicle back to the Riggles
RV and Event Center for the public hearing.
Deviations from this flight path may occur if the pilot deems necessary for safety or is directed to
by air traffic control.

Tour Itinerary- January 27,2020:
MEET AT RIGGLES RV AND EVENT CENTER

11:00 am

REVIEW TOUR PROTOCOL

11:05 am

DEPART FOR HELICOPTERS

11:10 am

ARRIVE AT HELICOPTERS

11:25 am

SAFETY BRIEFING

11:30 am

HELICOPTERS DEPART

11:45 am

HELICOPTERS RETURN

3:25 pm

DEPART FOR RIGGLES RV AND EVENT CENTER

3:30 pm

DISCUSSION OF TOUR

4:00 pm
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Ten West Link
Helicopter Tour Narrative

Introduction: Ten West Link
You are about to take an aerial tour of the Ten West Link transmission project, a
proposed 125-mile-long, 500 kV transmission line connecting the APS-owned Delaney
substation, located in Tonopah Arizona, to the SCE-owned Colorado River substation located just west of City of Blythe in Riverside, California. The tour will start at the
Delaney substation and will follow the 103-mile long, Arizona section of the proposed
transmission line route, concluding at the Colorado River on the Arizona-California
border.

HOVER POINT: 1 (Delaney Substation)
The Ten West Link project interconnects to the Delaney Substation, which is directly in
front of us. As part of the project, the Delaney Substation will be converted to a split
bus arrangement by APS to facilitate the interconnection of the line. The line will exit the
substation to a new steel monopole towards the west. This structure can be seen in
CEC exhibit G6.
From that point, the line will span north along the outer perimeter of the substation using
self-supporting lattice structures, which can be seen in CEC exhibits G1 and G4. As the
line wraps around the perimeter of the substation, its corridor will converge with the
existing transmission lines that have a north-south alignment. Ten West Link will
continue north, crossing lnterstate-10 The majority of access to this area will use
existing access roads.
The land under this hover point is privately owned Arizona State Land Department
property, or ASLD for short, is located east and south of the substation. The Ten West
Link alignment is proposed to be on private land between the substation and I-10.
Transitional
We will now travel to the next hover point, which is about 12 miles away. We'll travel
about 600 feet to the left, of the Ten West Link alignment and see how the line will
parallel the existing Devers-Palo Verde 500 kV line We'll also cross over I-10 and the
Central Arizona Project canal.
Hover Point (1 mile from substation)
Lat: 33.480868°
Long: -113.054107
1
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HOVER POINT: 2 (Corridor Adjacent to Existing Devers-Palo Verde Line)
As we look west, we see the existing Devers-Palo Verde line, or DPV for short, and the
Central Arizona Project, or CAP, canal to our right. Ten West Link will parallel the DPV
line from the Delaney substation past this point to the I-10Freeway, which you can see
in the distance.
At this location, Ten West Link will use self-supporting lattice structures, similar in shape
and height to the DPV line. Please see CEC exhibits G1 and G4 for examples of these
structures. Each Ten West Link structure will generally be about 250 feet to the south of
the corresponding DPV line structure. The type of structures in this area were chosen to
reduce the visual contrast of the Ten West Link line by mimicking the structure
placement, height, and spans of the DPV line. The majority of the access in this area
will use existing access roads that were built for the construction of DPV. Short spur
roads will continue these existing access roads to the locations of the new Ten West
Link structures.
The land under and around this hover point is owned by the Bureau of Land
Management or BLM. The Big Horn Mountain Wilderness Area is located to the north.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, which is about 14 miles away. We'll travel
about 600 feet to the left, or south, of the Ten West Link alignment. We will see how the
Ten West Link line will parallel the existing DPV line.
Hover Point
Lat: 33.575432°
Long. -113.147335°
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HOVER POINT: 3 (1-10 Crossing)

At this location, Ten West Link will still be to the left or south of the existing DPV line
that you can see to the right of us. Ten West Link will cross over the 1-10 Freeway here,
in a similar fashion as the DPV line.
DCRT has met with the Arizona Department of Transportation several times to
understand their requirements for crossing I-10 and will comply with these
requirements
Three spans ahead, just past where you can see the canal, the Ten West Link
alignment diverges from the DPV line, crossing under the DPV line and continuing to
the west parallel to the 1-10 Freeway.
The land under this hover point is owned by the Arizona Department of Transportation.
Arizona State Lands and BLM lands are to the north. Privately owned desert land is to
the east and west, adjacent to 1-10.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, which is about half a mile away. We'll continue
to travel about 600 feet to the left, or south, of the Ten West Link alignment.

Hover Point.
Lat. 33.578049°
Long· -113.391675°
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HOVER POINT: 4 (Devers Palo-Verde Transmission Line Crossing)
At this location, looking west along the south side of I-10, Ten West Link will stop
following the DPV line. Ten West Link will cross under the DPV line and continue
parallel to I-10 for the next 41 miles, approximately 1,600 to 3,500 feet to the south of
Interstate 10.
Two key factors led to the divergence of Ten West Link from the DPV line. First, due to
objections raised by the US Fish and Wildlife Service necessitated that the Project avoid
the Kofa National Wildlife Refuge This desire, coupled with the various NGOs have
expressed their preference to see new large infrastructure projects, such as Ten West
Link, be located near existing infrastructure, such as 1-10. The Sonoran Institute,
Centers for Biological Diversity, and the Natural Resources Defense Coalition all
expressed this preference to the BLM during its evaluations of the alternatives. These
factors contributed to this route being selected as the BLM's preferred alternative route,
rather than having Ten West Link continue along the DPV line at this location.
Ten West Link will use individual steel monopoles to cross under the DPV line. These
steel monopoles are illustrated in CEC exhibit G7. DCRT is in regular communication
with Southern California Edison and will coordinate with it to ensure that the crossing of
the DPV line is done in a safe and reliable manner.
As required by the BLM, bird diverters will be placed on the overhead line where the
transmission line crosses open water, with the first instance of this occurring when Ten
West Link crosses the canal immediately after crossing the DPV line.
Similarly, DCRT has met with Central Arizona Project personnel to understand its needs
for how Ten West Link crosses the CAP canal, addressing not only the CAP's concerns
for operational compatibility, but also to minimize impacts to the CAP's environmental
"green up" areas that are adjacent to the canal and serve as vegetation habitat.
Beyond the DPV line and canal crossing, to the west, Ten West Link will predominantly
use guyed-V structures and will construct a new access road along alignment. Please
see CEC exhibit G3 for an illustration of the guyed-V structures.
The land near the hover point is owned by a combination of entities: Central Arizona
Project, the Arizona Department of Transportation and private landowners. The land
further to the west along the Ten West Link alignment is a mixture of BLM land and
private land
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, which is about 16 miles away. We'll travel
directly over the Ten West Link alignment and we'll be able to see the separation
between the Project and the 1-10 Freeway.
Hover Point: Lat: 33 571518° / Long. -113.399002°
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HOVER POINT: 5 (Distance from 1-10)

This location is about the mid-way point of the portion of the Ten West Link Project that
parallels the 1-10 Freeway. We are directly above the proposed Ten West Link
alignment, approximately 2,500 feet to the south of the closest freeway lane.
Ten West Link will continue to predominantly use guyed-V structures as the project
parallels 1-10 and will to build the new access road along the alignment. Examples of
the guyed-V structures can be found in exhibit G3.
After the Draft Environmental Impact Statement was published, the Arizona State Land
Department expressed concern about the placement of the project through its lands
near 1-10. DCRT and BLM met with the Department to further understand its concerns
and evaluated various additional routes for this segment of the line. The Arizona State
Land Department and BLM settled on an a mutually agreeable alignment, which is
reflected in the Proposed Route at issue in the CEC application.
The land near this hover point is owned by the Arizona State Land. The land one-half to
one mile to the east, south, and north is owned by the BLM and the land about 1 5 miles
to the west is privately owned.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point which is the where the Series Compensation
Station will be located, about 16 miles away. We'll travel directly over the Ten West
Link alignment and we'll be able to see the separation between the Project and the 1-10
freeway.

Hover Point
Lat: 33.609211 °
Long: -113.670776°
Hover: 200-ft
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HOVER POINT: 6 (Series Compensation Station)
This hover point is approximately 1,000 feet south of the proposed series compensation
station. The station is located in an approximately 187-feet by 281-feet or 1.2 acres
fenced area. A drawing of the station layout can be found in CEC exhibit G16.
As Ten West Link approaches the series compensation station from the east, it uses a
combination of self-supporting lattice structures, as seen in CED exhibits G1 and G4,
and guyed-V structures, as seen in CEC exhibit G3. The selection of structure types is
a result of alignment turns and topography.
As Ten West Link departs the series compensation station and continues west, it will
use self-supporting lattice structures. The selection of structure types is based on
alignment turns, or angles, as well as topography. Please refer to CEC exhibits G1 and
G4 for examples of these structures.
The land in this area is owned by the BLM. The New Water Mountain Wilderness Area
is located approximately 3-miles due south and the Kofa National Wildlife Refuge is
approximately 6 5 miles to the south.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, about 16 miles away, which is where the Ten
West Link line turns south away from 1-10. We will travel directly above the Ten West
Link alignment and we will be able to see the separation between the Project and the 110 Freeway. Note how the topography changes and becomes more mountainous.

Hover Point
Lat: 33.645983°
Long: -113.940609°
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HOVER POINT: 7 (Diverge from 1-10)

At this location, the alignment turns to the southwest and no longer parallels 1-10. This
alignment avoids the Town of Quartzite as well as the BLM's Long-Term Visitor Area.
This alignment to the southwest places the structures along the valley floor, below the
mountains to the south. The Town of Quartzsite can be seen to the west from here.
Avoiding the Town of Quartzite was a high priority to the local community and another
result of the extensive stakeholder outreach conducted on this project.
As Ten West Link continues to the south from this point it uses self-supporting lattice
structures. Because this area is used by the Off-Highway Vehicle recreational
community, the SLM perceived the guy wire associated with guyed-V structures-to be
potential safety risk to this community. As a result, the BLM selected self-supporting
structures in this area as a safety precaution. Examples of these structures can be
found in CEC exhibits G1 and G4.
Though some existing roads are available and will be used to gain access to the Project
area, new access roads will be required to be constructed in this area.
The area in all directions around this hover point is owned by the SLM. The Kofa
National Wildlife Refuge is 8.5 miles to the southeast from here.
Various alternatives through this valley were considered by the SLM, including
alignments that were closer to the Town of Quartzite and the SLM Long-Term Visitor
Area. On several occasions, DCRT met with the leadership of the Town of Quartzite,
La Paz County and the Off-Highway Vehicle community to understand concerns raised
about having the Ten West Link alignment near their population centers and
recreational areas that are important to the area economy. DCRT articulated these local
concerns to BLM and the Proposed Route avoids impacting these areas

Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, about 10 miles away, which is where the Ten
West Link line again converges with the existing DPV line corridor. We'll travel directly
above the Ten West Link alignment. Note how the project is at the base of the
mountains to the left and the presence of existing access roads along the way, many of
which will be used by the project where practicable.
Hover Point
Lat: 33.672620°
Long: -114.115994 °
Hover elevation: 200 feet
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HOVER POINT: 8 (Rejoin DPV)

At this point, the Ten West Link alignment rejoins the existing DPV corridor. Ten West
Link will cross under the DPV line at this location, then turn west, and parallel DPV
approximately 250 feet to the south of the existing line.
To the west, while adjacent to the DPV line, the Ten West Link structures will be similar
in shape and height to the DPV line-- using self-supporting lattice structures as depicted
in CEC exhibits G1 and G4. The type of structures in this area were chosen to reduce
the visual contrast of the Ten West Link line by mimicking the structure placement,
height, and spans of the DPV line to the extent feasible. The majority of access in this
area will use existing access roads that were built for the construction of the DPV line.
Short spur roads will continue these existing access roads to the locations of the new
Ten West Link structures.
The Department of Defense and Yuma Proving Ground voiced concerns with the project
being located on Yuma Proving Ground property, citing operational impacts. Given the
presence of the DPV line and pipelines to the north, completely avoiding Yuma Proving
Ground lands was challenging. By working closely with DOD staff and evaluating a
multitude of engineering options, we identified a solution of spanning Yuma Proving
Ground lands by way of an aerial-only crossing. This solution was acceptable to the
DOD and allowed the project to stay on the south side of the DPV line, thereby avoiding
impacts to other infrastructure and resources -- including a large desert wash area
running through the northeast corner of Yuma Proving Ground lands
The area in all directions around this hover point is owned by the BLM The Kofa
National Wildlife Refuge boundary is 0.6 miles to the east. The DOD and Yuma Proving
Ground boundary is 4 4 miles to the west. We are now close to the northwest corner of
the Kofa National Wildlife Refuge, where DCRT will implement additional mitigation
requirements developed as part of the Biological Assessment process with the US Fish
and Wildlife Services. The Project will avoid construction activities in this area during the
Sonoran pronghorn breeding season and will stop work in this area anytime that
pronghorns are present in the Kofa National Wildlife Refuge within one mile of the
Project centerline.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the next hover point, about 8 miles away, which is where the Ten
West Link line traverses through the Copper Bottom Pass. We'll travel about 600 feet to
the left of the Ten West Link alignment and will see how the Ten West Link line parallels
the existing DPV line. About half-way to the next hover point, the Yuma Proving Ground
will be to our left. Please note the existing access roads along the way and the
existence of spur roads to the current DPV structures. These spur roads will be
extended to the new Ten West Link structures.
Hover Point: Lat: 33 529831 ° / Long. -114.176381 °
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HOVER POINT: 9 (Enter Copper Bottom Pass)

At this point, the Ten West Link alignment enters Copper Bottom Pass. The Copper
Bottom Pass is a utility corridor in which existing gas pipelines, roads, and the DPV line
are located.
The Ten West Link line will be located a minimum of 200 feet to the south of the DPV
line with the structures located on ridgelines similar to DPV. To ensure transmission line
reliability, it is critical to maintain adequate separation between the DPV line and the
Ten West Link line. The physical separation between the two vital 500 kV lines will
minimize the probability that the same event would create an outage on both the lines.
In this area, the Project will use a combination of road and roadless construction
methods. Roadless construction will use helicopter access to avoid the need to
construct new access roads, minimizing the amount of visual and physical impact in the
area The use of road less construction is used where feasible in this section of the
project, taking into account the safety of helicopter operations.
In this section Ten West Link uses self-supporting lattice structures. The types of
structures in this area were chosen due to engineering requirements due to the rough
topography. Examples of these structures can be found in CEC exhibits G1 and G4.
The area in all directions around this hover point is owned by the BLM. The DOD/Yuma
Proving Ground boundary is 0.6 miles to the south. The Colorado River Indian Tribes
reservation is approximately 4 miles to the northwest. No component of the Project is
located on tribal land.
Transitional
We'll now travel to the final hover point, the Colorado River and border between Arizona
and California, about 17 miles away. While still in the Copper Bottom Pass, portions of
the Ten West Link route in this area is approximately 500 to 1000 feet south of the
Colorado River Indian Tribes reservation.
The Copper Bottom Pass area has been identified by the BLM as an area of high use
by Off-highway Vehicle riders and as an area of high visual value. DCRT will be
implementing a number of measures to avoid impacting this area, including the use of
helicopter access at select structure locations so as to avoid building access roads with
large cuts and color matching with the existing DPV line structures and rock painting in
select areas to further reduce visual impacts from road construction.
About mid-way to the final hover point we'll exit the Copper Bottom Pass and you will be
able to see the topography change from mountainous to the historical Colorado River
floodplain. In this area we'll travel about 600 feet to the left or south of the Ten West
Link alignment.
9
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When we exit Copper Bottom Pass we'll see that Ten West Link continues to parallel
the existing DPV line. Note how the topography in the section is comprised of a number
of ravines and ridgelines, limiting the available locations to site the structures. Similar to
the past section, please note the existing access roads along the way and the existence
of spur roads to the current DPV structures. As earlier, these spur roads will be
extended to the new Ten West Link structures.

Hover Point
Lat: 33.561144°
Long· -114 311409°
Hover Point: Above topography and in smooth air.
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HOVER POINT: 10 (Colorado River)
This is the location where Ten West Link crosses the Colorado River and exits Arizona.
The area in all directions around the hover point is owned by the Arizona State Land
Department. The BLM owns the land 1 mile to the east and south.
Notably, the Project will not directly impact any wetlands associated with the Colorado
River nor will it impact any protected fish species in the river. Bird diverters will also be
placed on the overhead wire at the Colorado River crossing since the Project crosses
open water.
Transitional
We'll now travel back to the airport in Quartzsite, a flight distance of about 23 miles.
We'll retrace the route we've taken along the Ten West Link alignment, through the
Copper Bottom Pass. When we've exited the pass, we'll go directly to the airport and
from there take you back to the Riggles RV Resort where the public hearing will
continue in order to entertain any questions or discussion about this tour.
Hover Point
Lat: 33.534713°
Long· -114.548117°
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Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G-1
Proposed Tangent Lattice Structure
APPROX. 120'
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Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G-3
Proposed Guyed-V Tangent Structure
APPROX. 120'
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Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G4
Proposed Self-Supporting Angle Dead-End Structure
APPROX. 110

APPROX. 50'

Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G-6
Proposed Steel Monopole Structures by Substations
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Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G-7
Proposed Three Pole Crossing Structure
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Ten West Link Application for CEC - Exhibit G-16
Series Compensation Station General Layout
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